

BUNCOMBE COUNTY

Request for Proposal

SYSTEMWIDE PARKS & RECREATION MASTER PLAN

Date of Issue: February 13, 2023

Proposal Submission Deadline: March 16, 2023 At 2:00PM ET

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.0 PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND

2.0 GENERAL INFORMATION

- 2.1 REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL DOCUMENT
- 2.2 NOTICE REGARDING RFP TERMS AND CONDITIONS
- 2.3 RFP SCHEDULE
- 2.4 PROPOSAL QUESTIONS
- 2.5 PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL
- 2.6 PROPOSAL CONTENTS

3.0 METHOD OF AWARD AND EVALUATION

- 3.1 METHOD OF AWARD
- 3.2 EVALUATION CRITERIA

4.0 **REQUIREMENTS**

- 4.1 CONTRACT TERM
- 4.2 PRICING
- 4.3 VENDOR EXPERIENCE
- 4.4 VENDOR'S REPRESENTATIONS

5.0 SCOPE OF WORK

- 5.1 SERVICES ANTICIPATED
- 5.2 KEY PRINCIPLES
- 5.3 KEY COMPONENTS
- 5.4 FINAL DELIVERABLES

6.0 GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1.0 PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND

Buncombe County (NC) is seeking proposals from qualified consulting firms to prepare a Systemwide Parks and Recreation Master Plan. The Systemwide Parks and Recreation Master Plan — in concert with Buncombe County's 2043 Comprehensive Plan — shall be rooted in the values of respect, integrity, collaboration, honesty, and equity. The planning process will include an inventory of current facilities and programs; a needs assessment based an equitable public input process, staff input, demographic trends and mapping exercises; parks and recreational trends research; identifying systemwide opportunities and constraints; visioning; a review of departmental processes; and proposal of design/programmatic solutions to help the Recreation Services Department better serve the people of Buncombe County.

The Systemwide Parks and Recreation Master Plan will build upon and replace the 2008 Buncombe County Parks and Recreation Services Master Plan. The Plan will also provide an up-to-date systemwide review and analysis of The 2012 Buncombe County Greenways and Trails Master Plan. The plan will be comprehensive, equitable, sustainable, and rooted in fiscally responsible solutions that will guide departmental growth, capital improvement, and recreation programming decisions for the next 20 years.

Buncombe County is located in the mountain region of western North Carolina. Nicknamed "Land of the Sky" the county is known for its geographic beauty and vast recreational opportunities. Buncombe County is a caring community in harmony with its environment where residents succeed, thrive, and realize their potential. The county remains committed to further developing a robust, equitable parks and recreation department that will continue to meet the county's mission:

- We promote a healthy, safe, well-educated, and thriving community with a sustainable quality of life.
- We provide effective and efficient government our residents can trust.
- We deliver needed service through a responsive work force committed to excellence, integrity, and teamwork.

Ultimately the Buncombe County Systemwide Parks and Recreation Master Plan will provide inspiration, a clear vision, and an actionable guide for the Recreation Services Department at Buncombe County over the next 20 years.

Proposals shall be submitted in accordance with the terms and conditions of this RFP and any addenda issued hereto.

2.0 GENERAL INFORMATION

2.1 REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL DOCUMENT

The RFP is comprised of the base RFP document, any attachments, and any addenda released before Contract award. All attachments and addenda released for this RFP in advance of any Contract award are incorporated herein by reference.

2.2 NOTICE REGARDING RFP TERMS AND CONDITIONS

It shall be the Vendor's responsibility to read the Instructions, the County's terms and conditions, all relevant exhibits and attachments, and any other components made a part of this RFP and comply with all requirements and specifications herein. Vendors also are responsible for obtaining and complying with all addenda and other changes that may be issued in connection with this RFP.

If Vendors have questions, issues, or exceptions regarding any term, condition, or other component within this RFP, those must be submitted as questions in accordance with the instructions in Section 2.5 PROPOSAL QUESTIONS. If the County determines that any changes will be made as a result of the questions asked, then such decisions will be communicated in the form of an RFP addendum. The County may also elect to leave open the possibility for later negotiation and amendment of specific provisions of the Contract that have been addressed during the question and answer period. Other than through this process, the County rejects and will not be required to evaluate or consider any additional or modified terms and conditions submitted with Vendor's proposal. This applies to any language appearing in or attached to the document as part of the Vendor's proposal that purports to vary any terms and conditions or Vendors' instructions herein or to render the proposal non-binding or subject to further negotiation. Vendor's proposal shall constitute a firm offer. By execution and delivery of this RFP Response, the Vendor agrees that any additional or modified terms and conditions, whether submitted purposely or inadvertently, shall have no force or effect, and

will be disregarded. Noncompliance with, or any attempt to alter or delete, this paragraph shall constitute sufficient grounds to reject Vendor's proposal as nonresponsive.

2.3 RFP SCHEDULE

The table below shows the intended schedule for this RFP. The County will make every effort to adhere to this schedule.

Event	Responsibility	Date and Time
Issue RFP	County	02/13/2023
Submit Written Questions	Vendor	02/23/2023 5:00PM
Provide Response to Questions	County	03/03/2023
Submit Proposals	Vendor	03/16/2023 2:00PM
Contract Award	County	04/03/2023
Contract Effective Date	County	05/01/2023

2.4 PROPOSAL QUESTIONS

Upon review of the RFP documents, Vendors may have questions to clarify or interpret the RFP in order to submit the best proposal possible. To accommodate the Proposal Questions process, Vendors shall submit any such questions by the above due date.

Written questions shall be emailed to <u>ron.venturella@buncombecounty.org</u> by the date and time specified above. Vendors should enter "RFP Systemwide Parks & Recreation Master Plan Questions" as the subject for the email. Questions submittals should include a reference to the applicable RFP section.

Questions received prior to the submission deadline date, the County's response, and any additional terms deemed necessary by the County will be posted in the form of an addendum. No information, instruction or advice provided orally or informally by any Buncombe County personnel, whether made in response to a question or otherwise in connection with this RFP, shall be considered authoritative or binding.

2.5 PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL

Proposals will be received until 2:00 PM, 03/16/2023. All proposals may be submitted electronically submitted via email and properly identified with the title RFP Systemwide Parks & Recreation Master Plan.

Proposals may be emailed to: Ron Venturella, Procurement Manager

E-mail: ron.venturella@buncombecounty.org

The County's capacity for email attachments is 9mb. It is the bidder's responsibility to ensure the proposal is received prior to the proposal acceptance time. Late proposals will not be accepted. The County reserves the right to accept or reject all or any part of any proposal, waive informalities and award the contract to best serve the interest of the County. It is the responsibility of the applicant that their proposal is received. Receipt of proposals can be verified by calling 828-250-4154.

2.6 PROPOSAL CONTENTS

Vendors shall populate all attachments of this RFP that require the Vendor to provide information and include an authorized signature where requested. Vendor RFP responses shall include the following items and those attachments should be arranged in the following order:

- a) Cover Letter
- b) Title Page: Include the company name, address, phone number and authorized representative.

- c) Describe the background, experience, and capabilities of your firm as it relates to the Scope of Work outlined in the RFP. Provide a general profile of your team who will be assigned to this project, address their workload availability and highlight their relevant work experience as it relates to this project. Provide the name of your firm's specific project manager for this project.
- d) Planning approach. Explain your approach to planning process including the different techniques you utilize to solicit public input and engagement. What tools and technology will you use that have been beneficial on past project of similar scope and scale.
- e) Propose specific tasks that you will utilize to carry out the Systemwide Parks and Recreation Master Plan. Include an estimated timeline with each task and project milestones.
- f) Explain your process for client communication, coordination, and review.
- g) Explain your firm's understanding of the context of Buncombe County, North Carolina.
- h) Provide a brief summary of your understanding of the proposed project.
- i) Identify all subcontractors you intend to use for the proposed scope of work. For each subcontractor listed, proposers shall indicate 1.) What products and/or services are to be supplied by that subcontractor and; 2.) What percentage of the overall scope of work that subcontractor will perform.
- j) List at least 3 client references public and private of similar size for whom you have provided similar services in the past three years. Provide telephone numbers and contact names for references. Also provide brief descriptions of each project you worked on for each of these references.
- k) Each Vendor shall submit with its proposal the name, address, and telephone number of the person(s) with authority to bind the firm and answer questions or provide clarification concerning the firm's proposal.

3.0 METHOD OF AWARD AND PROPOSAL EVALUATION PROCESS

3.1 METHOD OF AWARD

All qualified proposals will be evaluated, and awards will be made to the Vendor(s) meeting the RFP requirements and best fits the needs of the County.

Buncombe County reserves the right to reject any and/or all submittals, and to waive defects, technicalities and/or irregularities in any submittal. The County reserves the right to finalize a contract with one or more firms based on all factors involved in the written qualification submittal without further discussion or interviews.

Proposals will generally be evaluated according to completeness, content, and experience with similar projects, ability of the Vendor and its staff, and cost.

Vendors are cautioned that this is a request for offers, not an offer or request to contract, and the County reserves the unqualified right to reject any and all offers at any time if such rejection is deemed to be in the best interest of the County.

3.2 EVALUATION CRITERIA

Following the deadline for submittals, a selection committee will review the submitted proposals. The selection committee will review, analyze, and rank all submittals based on their response to the information requested. The selection process will include the following criteria in the evaluation of proposals. These criteria are not necessarily listed in order of importance.

- 1. Planning Approach
- 2. Firm Qualifications
- 3. Team Composition and Expertise
- 4. Relevant Work and Experience
- 5. Contextual Understanding

- 6. Project Understanding
- 7. Client Coordination and Review Process
- 8. Overall Proposal Quality, Clarity, and Completeness
- 9. Client References

4.0 REQUIREMENTS

4.1 CONTRACT TERM

The contract shall begin on the date of the contract award and will be complete upon the acceptance of all requirements and deliverables within the agreed upon scope of work. The desired timeline for this project is 18 months, not to exceed 24 months.

4.2 PRICING

Proposal price shall constitute the total cost to Buyer for complete performance in accordance with the requirements and specifications herein, including all applicable charges handling, administrative and other similar fees. Vendor shall not invoice for any amounts not specifically allowed for in this RFP.

4.3 VENDOR EXPERIENCE

In its Proposal, Vendor shall demonstrate experience with public and/or private sector clients with similar or greater size and complexity to Buncombe County. Vendor shall provide information as to the qualifications and experience of all executive, managerial, legal, and professional personnel to be assigned to this project, including citing experience with similar projects and the responsibilities to be assigned to each person.

4.4 VENDOR'S REPRESENTATIONS

- a) Vendor warrants that qualified personnel shall provide Services under this Contract in a professional manner. "Professional manner" means that the personnel performing the Services will possess the skill and competence consistent with the prevailing business standards in the industry. Vendor agrees that it will not enter any agreement with a third party that may abridge any rights of the County under this Contract. Vendor will serve as the prime contractor under this Contract and shall be responsible for the performance and payment of all subcontractor(s) that may be approved by the County. Names of any third party Vendors or subcontractors of Vendor may appear for purposes of convenience in Contract documents; and shall not limit Vendor's obligations hereunder. Vendor will retain executive representation for functional and technical expertise as needed in order to incorporate any work by third party subcontractor(s).
- b) If any Services, deliverables, functions, or responsibilities not specifically described in this Contract are required for Vendor's proper performance, provision and delivery of the service and deliverables under this Contract, or are an inherent part of or necessary sub-task included within such service, they will be deemed to be implied by and included within the scope of the contract to the same extent and in the same manner as if specifically described in the contract. Unless otherwise expressly provided herein, Vendor will furnish all of its own necessary management, supervision, labor, facilities, furniture, computer and telecommunications equipment, software, supplies and materials necessary for the Vendor to provide and deliver the Services and Deliverables.
- c) Vendor warrants that it has the financial capacity to perform and to continue perform its obligations under the contract; that Vendor has no constructive or actual knowledge of an actual or potential legal proceeding being brought against Vendor that could materially adversely affect performance of this Contract; and that entering into this Contract is not prohibited by any contract, or order by any court of competent jurisdiction.

5.1 SERVICES ANTICIPATED

Project Administration

Perform administrative tasks and coordination as follows:

- Develop a workplan that outlines overall approach, tasks, milestones and timeline with desired completion of 18 months not to exceed 24 months
- Develop a bi-weekly project timeline for tracking project progress
- Coordinate project management activities with Buncombe County Recreation Service's Principal Planner
- Create agendas for all project meetings
- Creation of exhibits (maps and presentation graphics) for project meetings
- Present at three public engagement meetings (one in each district)
- Present at two meetings with the Board of Commissioners
- Coordination all sub-consultants
- Coordination of meeting times and locations
- Work with Buncombe County staff to write press releases
- Attend monthly project progress meetings(internal)
- Presentation of findings to staff and the public at project milestones

Inventory of Park Facilities, Greenways, and Recreational Services (Programming)

Collect, categorize, and illustrate data, facilities, and site conditions as follows:

- Facility/Amenity inventory (park location, age, and condition)
- ADA compliance (park and facility level)
- Existing state of operations
- Recreational services inventory (park location and program frequency)
- Staffing inventory (Staff internal vs external to the department)
- Greenway inventory
- Natural resource inventory
- Cultural resource inventory
- Regional parks and recreation facilities

Research Trends, Park Systems and Evidence-Based Solutions

Complete project relevant research on subjects such as:

- Demographic trends
- Recreational/Programmatic trends
- Regional Trends
- County Park typologies
- Park usage and capacity trends
- Parks and recreation operations trends
- Identify public-facing communication gaps
- Existing and potential strategic partnerships
- Solutions to existing user conflicts
- Regionally implemented low-impact development (LID) techniques at parks

Community Engagement

Develop and implement an inclusive community engagement program, including the following:

- Develop a community engagement strategy
- Utilize equitable outreach and engagement methods
- Create and Administer Public Surveys
- Host and present at public meetings (3)
- Coordinate with Buncombe County Community Engagement to facilitate and lead community engagement exercises.
- Utilize Buncombe County Recreation Services Equity Matrix

- Utilize online engagement tools throughout the planning process
- Print materials needed for public engagement/meetings

Analysis of Systemwide Opportunities and Constraints

Identify, provide, and prioritize systemwide opportunities and constraints such as:

- Identify and clearly communicate facility gaps throughout the county
- Identify and clearly communicate underserved communities throughout the county
- Identify relevant federal, state, and local grant opportunities
- Identify other relevant funding sources for solutions proposed in the master plan
- Identify and prioritize needed facility improvements at each existing park
- Provide planning level cost estimates for proposed facilities improvements
- Provide planning level cost estimates for proposed new facilities
- Prioritize greenway projects based on feasibility and ROW acquisition
- Identify and clearly communicate gaps in programming in underserved and rural communities in Buncombe County

Planning and Value-Based Solutions

Create a feasible, action-oriented plan with solutions specific to your inventory and analysis:

- Propose solutions to facility issues and coverage gaps
- Propose solutions to operational issues
- Propose solutions to recreational programming service gaps
- Propose solutions to traditionally underserved communities
- Propose solutions to any issues that may arise from the public input process
- Solutions may be communicated via text, graphics, charts, graphs, etc.
- Forecast projected staffing requirements and prioritization with additional facilities and programming

5.2 KEY PRINCIPLES

- Plan's Accessibility and Length: The Plan shall be written in a way that is accessible and understandable; the Plan will not be written for Planners but for the general public. The Plan will be concise but include all necessary components.
- Public Engagement: The Plan shall be developed with robust public engagement, ensuring those that often do not participate have opportunities to participate in the development of outcomes. The engagement will include some traditional methods of public engagement such as surveys and public meetings. In addition, public input will also employ innovative non-traditional digital and online engagement techniques, connecting to residents where they are, examples of which include: outdoor community kiosks, online forums, a website, including a web-based portal for education and input on the County's website, videos, social media (Facebook, Twitter, Instagram), etc. The engagement will intentionally include and seek out residents with unique perspectives who have been traditionally underserved (i.e., youth, people facing economic barriers, minority communities, BIPOC, people with disabilities, ESL, and both urban and rural families). The types and frequency of engagements, and the targeted constituencies, shall be quantified to ensure accountability and validity. The selected vendor will provide a Communication and Public Engagement Plan, which will outline best practices for equitable, online, and text-enabled participation, including recommendations for the use of an online civic engagement portal.
- Historical Component: A historical component will be included in the Plan, wherein the history of Buncombe County Recreation Services Department and relevant context is relayed. A review of current and past parks, recreation, and greenways master plans shall be included.
- Regionalism: The Plan's geographical area will be Buncombe County, but when possible and appropriate, the connection between the County, its municipalities, adjacent counties, and our regional partners shall be emphasized.
- Equity Lens: The Plan will approach all Key Principles, Elements and Components with an Equity Lens. The Equity Lens will be specific to the needs, communities, and populations of Buncombe County and will highlight Racial Equity as a key component.
- Environmental Protection: The Plan will recognize the County's efforts in resiliency and hazard mitigation, as well as outline future goals and actions necessary for Recreation Services to maintain and improve the County's natural resources and environmental health.

- Graphics: The selected vendor shall use visualization techniques that graphically and accurately depict pertinent information for each component of the Plan, including, but not limited to: branding, infographics, wordmaps, photographs, illustrations, and renderings. Easy to read and informative charts, graphs, and maps shall be used throughout the Plan. Graphics and coloring schemes shall be used as tools to distinguish important items as themes or goals throughout the Plan.
- Defined Goals, Policies, and Actions: The goals, policies, and actions that are identified through the Plan shall be clear, consistent, and identified through an attractive and recognizable schematic throughout the Plan.

5.3 KEY COMPONENTS

Buncombe County has established the preliminary key components of the Plan under this Scope of Work to serve as the guide for the Plan's framework. The components will serve to direct the Plan's development and potential partners are encouraged to suggest innovative additions/modifications to these components through explanation in the submitted proposal. **Please note that components may be added or removed as the planning process unfolds based on feedback from staff, the community, advisory boards, commissioners, and elected officials.

- Executive Summary: An executive summary that outlines the vision, detailed goals, and elements that are laid out in the Systemwide Parks, Recreation, and Greenways Plan. The executive summary will be located within the Systemwide Plan but may at times function as a stand-alone document.
- Parks and Recreation System Development, Existing Conditions, and Inventory: A history and review of current park planning, greenways, and programming efforts, including an inventory, review and analysis of existing facilities, recreational programs, staffing, policies, and conditions. Demographic and population analysis using the most recent and reliable data available will be included. Recreational programming and current trends assessment. A property inventory shall be created which identifies facilities, facility use frequency, natural resources, and their overall condition. County wide maps that identify county and other regional recreational facilities and programs and any gaps that exist.
- Visioning and Development of Action Oriented Goals: The goals, policies, and actions shall be developed following significant public engagement. These items will help define the vision for the County regarding future parks facilities, recreation programming, and potential greenway growth and development. A needs assessment will be developed which identifies park facility and recreation programming gaps. The assessment will also identify and equitably prioritize greenway projects.

A description of the pertinent public engagement activities should be provided in this section of the Plan. The types of outreach and number of participants should be included, as well as examples of insight and focus provided.

Within this component of the Plan, recommendations for implementation policies and actions shall be provided. These items shall include but not be limited to prioritized park facilities improvement plans with planning level cost estimates, a prioritized list of capital improvement projects, recreational programming implementation plans, and an up-to-date overall assessment of greenways development progress as it relates to the 2012 Greenways and Trails Master Plan.

5.4 FINAL DELIVERABLES

The vendor shall provide both a print-ready, and a web-formatted copy best suited for online display, of the complete Systemwide Parks and Recreation Master Plan. At the completion of the project the selected vendor shall provide to the Buncombe County Recreation Services Department digital copies of all data, photos, files, reports, and other documents collected and created during the planning process, in both static (PDF) and editable formats (ex: .JPG, .SHP, .INDD, .XLSX, .AI, .MXD, etc.) when applicable.

6.0 GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. <u>READ, REVIEW AND COMPLY</u>: It shall be the Vendor's responsibility to read this entire document, review all enclosures and attachments, and any addenda thereto, and comply with all requirements specified herein, regardless of whether appearing in these Instructions to Vendors or elsewhere in this RFP document.

- <u>LATE PROPOSALS</u>: Late proposals, regardless of cause, will not be considered, and will automatically be disqualified from further consideration. It shall be the Vendor's sole responsibility to ensure the timely submission of proposals.
- 3. <u>ACCEPTANCE AND REJECTION</u>: Buncombe County reserves the right to reject any and all proposals, to waive any informality in proposals and, unless otherwise specified by the Vendor, to accept any item in the proposal.
- 4. INFORMATION AND DESCRIPTIVE LITERATURE: If required elsewhere in this proposal, each Vendor shall submit with its proposal any sketches, descriptive literature and/or complete specifications covering the products and Services offered. Reference to literature submitted with a previous proposal or available elsewhere will not satisfy this provision. Failure to comply with these requirements shall constitute sufficient cause to reject a proposal without further consideration.
- 5. <u>SUSTAINABILITY</u>: To support the sustainability efforts of the State of North Carolina we solicit your cooperation in this effort. Pursuant to Executive Order 156 (1999), it is desirable that all print responses submitted meet the following:
 - All copies of the proposal are printed <u>double sided</u>.
 - All submittals and copies are printed on recycled paper with a minimum post-consumer content of 30%.
 - Unless absolutely necessary, all proposals and copies should minimize or eliminate use of non-recyclable or non-reusable materials such as plastic report covers, plastic dividers, vinyl sleeves, and GBC binding. Threeringed binders, glued materials, paper clips, and staples are acceptable.
 - Materials should be submitted in a format which allows for easy removal, filing and/or recycling of paper and binder materials. Use of oversized paper is strongly discouraged unless necessary for clarity or legibility.
- 6. <u>HISTORICALLY UNDERUTILIZED BUSINESSES</u>: Buncombe County is committed to retaining Vendors from diverse backgrounds, and it invites and encourages participation in the procurement process by businesses owned by minorities, women, disabled, disabled business enterprises and non-profit work centers for the blind and severely disabled. In particular, the County encourages participation by Vendors certified by the State Office of Historically Underutilized Businesses, as well as the use of HUB-certified vendors as subcontractors on County contracts.
- 7. <u>INELIGIBLE VENDORS</u>: As provided in G.S. 147-86.59 and G.S. 147-86.82, the following companies are ineligible to contract with the State of North Carolina or any political subdivision of the State: a) any company identified as engaging in investment activities in Iran, as determined by appearing on the Final Divestment List created by the State Treasurer pursuant to G.S. 147-86.58, and b) any company identified as engaged in a boycott of Israel as determined by appearing on the List of restricted companies created by the State Treasurer pursuant to G.S. 147-86.58, and b) any company identified as engaged in a boycott of Israel as determined by appearing on the List of restricted companies created by the State Treasurer pursuant to G.S. 147-86.81. A contract with the Buncombe County by any company identified in a) or b) above shall be void *ab initio*.
- 8. <u>CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION</u>: To the extent permitted by applicable statutes and rules, the County will maintain as confidential trade secrets in its proposal that the Vendor does not wish disclosed. As a condition to confidential treatment, each page containing trade secret information shall be identified in boldface at the top and bottom as "CONFIDENTIAL" by the Vendor, with specific trade secret information enclosed in boxes, marked in a distinctive color or by similar indication. Cost information shall not be deemed confidential under any circumstances. Regardless of what a Vendor may label as a trade secret, the determination whether it is or is not entitled to protection will be determined in accordance with G.S. 132-1.2. Any material labeled as confidential constitutes a representation by the Vendor that it has made a reasonable effort in good faith to determine that such material is, in fact, a trade secret under G.S. 132-1.2. Vendors are urged and cautioned to limit the marking of information as a trade secret or as confidential so far as is possible. If a legal action is brought to require the disclosure of any material so marked as confidential, the County will notify Vendor of such action and allow Vendor to defend the confidential status of its information.
- 9. <u>MISCELLANEOUS</u>: Any gender-specific pronouns used herein, whether masculine or feminine, shall be read and construed as gender neutral, and the singular of any word or phrase shall be read to include the plural and vice versa.
- **10.** <u>INFORMAL COMMENTS</u>: Buncombe County shall not be bound by informal explanations, instructions or information given at any time by anyone on behalf of the County during the competitive process or after award. The

County is bound only by information provided in writing in this RFP and in formal Addenda issued through IPS.

- 11. <u>COST FOR PROPOSAL PREPARATION</u>: Any costs incurred by Vendor in preparing or submitting offers are the Vendor's sole responsibility; Buncombe County will not reimburse any Vendor for any costs incurred or associated with the preparation of proposals.
- 12. <u>AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS</u>: Any and all payments to the Vendor shall be dependent upon and subject to the availability of funds to the agency for the purpose set forth in The Contract.
- 13. <u>SITUS AND GOVERNING LAWS</u>: This Contract is made under and shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of North Carolina, without regard to its conflict of laws rules, and within which State all matters, whether sounding in Contract or tort or otherwise, relating to its validity, construction, interpretation and enforcement shall be determined.
- 14. <u>PAYMENT TERMS</u>: If a payment schedule is not part of The Contract then payment terms will be Net 30 days after receipt of a correct invoice or acceptance of goods, whichever is later.
- **15.** <u>NON-DISCRIMINATION</u>: The Vendor will take necessary action to comply with all Federal and State requirements concerning fair employment and employment of people with disabilities, and concerning the treatment of all employees without regard to discrimination on the basis of any prohibited grounds as defined by Federal and State law.
- 16. <u>ADVERTISING</u>: Vendor agrees not to use the existence of The Contract or the name of Buncombe County as part of any commercial advertising or marketing of products or Services. A Vendor may inquire whether the County is willing to act as a reference by providing factual information directly to other prospective customers.

17. INSURANCE:

COVERAGE - During the term of the Contract, the Vendor at its sole cost and expense shall provide commercial insurance of such type and with such terms and limits as may be reasonably associated with the Contract. As a minimum, the Vendor shall provide and maintain the following coverage and limits:

Commercial General Liability insurance in an amount not less than \$1,000,000 each occurrence/\$2,000,000 annual aggregate. Coverage shall not contain any endorsement(s) excluding nor limiting Product/Completed Operations or Contractual Liability.

Business Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, and hired vehicles with a minimum combined single limit of \$1,000,000 each occurrence and shall include uninsured/underinsured motorist coverage per NC General Statute 20-279-21.

Workers Compensation coverage at the statutory limits in compliance with applicable State and Federal laws. Supplier shall ensure that any subcontractors also have workers compensation coverage at the statutory limits.

Employer's Liability coverage with minimum limits of \$500,000 each accident and \$500,000 each employee disease.

Vendor shall agree these General Conditions constitute an insured contract and shall name Buncombe County as an additional insured under the Commercial General Liability policy. Before commencing work and for any subsequent renewals, Vendor shall furnish the County with certificates of insurance evidencing the above coverages and amounts on an approved form. Vendor hereby grants the County a waiver of any right of subrogation which any insurer of said Vendor may acquire against the County by virtue of payment of any loss under such insurance. Vendor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect this waiver of subrogation. Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be canceled, except with written notice to the County and delivered in accordance with the policy provisions. All insurance shall be procured from reputable insurers authorized and qualified to do business in North Carolina and in a form acceptable to the County. The limits of coverage under each insurance policy maintained by the Vendor shall not be interpreted as limiting the Supplier's liability and obligations. Nothing in this section is intended to affect or abrogate Buncombe County's governmental immunity.

18. <u>GENERAL INDEMNITY</u>: The Vendor shall hold and save Buncombe County, its officers, agents, and employees, harmless from liability of any kind, including all claims and losses accruing or resulting to any other person, firm, or corporation furnishing or supplying work, Services, materials, or supplies in connection with the performance of The

Contract, and from any and all claims and losses accruing or resulting to any person, firm, or corporation that may be injured or damaged by the Vendor in the performance of The Contract and that are attributable to the negligence or intentionally tortious acts of the Vendor provided that the Vendor is notified in writing within 30 days from the date that the County has knowledge of such claims. The Vendor represents and warrants that it shall make no claim of any kind or nature against the County's agents who are involved in the delivery or processing of Vendor deliverables or Services to the County. The representation and warranty in the preceding sentence shall survive the termination or expiration of The Contract.

19. <u>CONFLICT OF INTEREST</u>: Per N.C. General Statute 14-234, no public officer or employee who is involved in making or administering a contract on behalf of a public agency may derive a direct benefit from the contract.

The statute defines "public officer" as an individual who is elected or appointed to serve or represent a public agency, other than an employee or independent contractor of a public agency.

A public officer or employee is involved in administering a contract if he or she oversees the performance of the contract or has authority to make decisions regarding the contract or to interpret the contract; or if he or she participates in the development of specifications or terms or in the preparation or award of the contract. A public officer is also involved in making a contract if the board, commission, or other body of which he or she is a member takes action on the contract, whether or not the public officer actually participates in that action, unless the contract is approved under an exception to this section under which the public officer is allowed to benefit and is prohibited from voting.

There is a conflict of interest when a public officer or employee derives a direct benefit from a contract if the person or his or her spouse: (i) has more than a ten percent (10%) ownership or other interest in an entity that is a party to the contract; (ii) derives any income or commission directly from the contract; or (iii) acquires property under the contract.

- 20. <u>CONFIDENTIALITY</u>: Any County information, data, instruments, documents, studies or reports given to or prepared or assembled by or provided to the Vendor under The Contract shall be kept as confidential, used only for the purpose(s) required to perform The Contract and not divulged or made available to any individual or organization without the prior written approval by Buncombe County.
- 21. <u>COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS</u>: Vendor shall comply with all laws, ordinances, codes, rules, regulations, and licensing requirements that are applicable to the conduct of its business and its performance in accordance with The Contract, including those of federal, state, and local agencies having jurisdiction and/or authority.
- 22. <u>ENTIRE AGREEMENT</u>: This RFP and any documents incorporated specifically by reference represent the entire agreement between the parties and supersede all prior oral or written statements or agreements. This RFP, any addenda hereto, and the Vendor's proposal are incorporated herein by reference as though set forth verbatim.

All promises, requirements, terms, conditions, provisions, representations, guarantees, and warranties contained herein shall survive the contract expiration or termination date unless specifically provided otherwise herein, or unless superseded by applicable Federal or State statutes of limitation.

- **23.** <u>AMENDMENTS</u>: This Contract may be amended only by a written amendment duly executed by the County and the Vendor.
- 24. <u>NO WAIVER</u>: Notwithstanding any other language or provision in The Contract, nothing herein is intended nor shall be interpreted as a waiver of any right or remedy otherwise available to the County under applicable law. The waiver by the County of any right or remedy on any one occasion or instance shall not constitute or be interpreted as a waiver of that or any other right or remedy on any other occasion or instance.
- 25. <u>FORCE MAJEURE</u>: Neither party shall be deemed to be in default of its obligations hereunder if and so long as it is prevented from performing such obligations as a result of events beyond its reasonable control, including without limitation, fire, power failures, any act of war, hostile foreign action, nuclear explosion, riot, strikes or failures or refusals to perform under subcontracts, civil insurrection, earthquake, hurricane, tornado, or other catastrophic natural event or act of God.

26. <u>SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY</u>: Notwithstanding any other term or provision in The Contract, nothing herein is intended nor shall be interpreted as waiving any claim or defense based on the principle of sovereign immunity or state or federal constitutional provision or principle that otherwise would be available to the County under applicable law.